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October 4, 2023 
 
Ms. Nancy Sienko, Director 
Ms. Roberta Steele, Regional Attorney 
San Francisco District Office 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
450 Golden Gate Avenue 
San Francisco, CA 94102-3361 
 
Re: Request for Investigation of Salesforce, Inc. 
 
Dear Ms. Sienko and Ms. Steele: 
 
America First Legal Foundation (“AFL”) is a national, nonprofit organization working 
to protect the rule of law, due process, and equal protection for all Americans.  
 
We write according to 29 C.F.R. § 1601.6(a), which provides that, “Any person or or-
ganization may request the issuance of a Commissioner charge for an inquiry into 
individual or systemic discrimination.” AFL hereby requests the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) open an investigation into Salesforce, Inc. 
(“Salesforce”) for engaging in unlawful employment practices in violation of Title VII 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2.1.1 Salesforce is a company under 
your jurisdiction, having its headquarters at 415 Mission Street, San Francisco, Cal-
ifornia 94105.2 As you know, an unlawful employment practice exists when the evi-
dence demonstrates that race, color, religion, sex, or national origin was a motivating 
factor for any employment practice. 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2(m).  
 
I. Evidence of Unlawful Employment Practices 
 
Salesforce openly admits—even touts—its racial, sexual, and gender discrimination 
in its recruitment and hiring programs. Since at least 2019, Salesforce has engaged 
in discriminatory hiring and promotion processes using a “Racial Equity and Justice 
Taskforce.”3 Moreover, in the spring of 2023, Salesforce announced the launch of a 
new gender-discriminatory hiring program designed to favor candidates identifying 

 
1 Copies of this letter are also addressed to each Member of the Commission and AFL makes the same 
request of them according to 29 C.F.R. § 1601.6(a). 
2 Salesforce, Inc. 2022, Annual Report, (Form 10-K) (Mar. 8, 2023), available at 
https://bit.ly/46GZn50.  
3 Lori Castillo Martinez, Our 2023 Annual Equality Update: Where We Are and Where We’re Going, 
SALESFORCE, (Feb. 28, 2023), https://sforce.co/3Xc6Ep7; See also Racial Equity and Justice Taskforce, 
SALESFORCE, https://sforce.co/44sIKZu.  
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as “non-binary” or “female.” Salesforce lists its desired hiring outcomes or quotas as 
the following:  
 

• 40% of employees globally to be women-identifying and non-binary by the end 
of 2026. 

• 50% increase in our U.S. representation of Black, Indigenous, Latinx, and Mul-
tiracial employees by the end of 2023. 

• An aim to increase Black, Indigenous, Latinx, and Multiracial leadership by 
50% by the end of 2023.4 

 
To enforce these hiring quotas, Salesforce publicly states that it includes “represen-
tation goals as part of our executive compensation programs.”5 Such financial encour-
agement has seen swift success in Salesforce meeting such discriminatory quotas 
through its discriminatory process. Salesforce is “more than a year ahead of schedule” 
and has seen a doubling of its U.S. representation of black leaders at the VP level or 
above. Salesforce has attained more than “50% of U.S. employee[s] ... [being made up] 
of underrepresented groups” in record time.6 Specifically, Salesforce published data 
showing successful discrimination in its recruitment process with year-over-year in-
creases from 2021 to 2022 in the hiring of “Latinx, Women, and Black” new workers 
of roughly 21%, 13%, and 5% respectively.7  
 
Further, to help Salesforce achieve its desired sex and race “balance,” the company 
has created “equality groups.”8 For example, the “BOLDforce” is designed to “expand 
and empower the Salesforce black community,”9 while the “Women’s Network,” is de-
signed to “amplif[y] the progress of women in every step of their journey ... through 
professional and personal development.”10 Tellingly, there are no comparable pro-
grams for white or male employees. There is a profound and depressing irony in cre-
ating groups that divide and segregate by race, leaving some out in the cold, and 
naming them “equality groups.” That name, however, does not transform them into 
instruments of equality. Indeed, “Separate ... [is] inherently unequal.”11 
 
Salesforce acknowledges its use of preferred hiring outcomes and quotas and high-
lights its supposed need to go further, stating that “True representation goes beyond 
hiring,” and promising to continue “building out the levers needed to achieve our goal, 
including dedicated resources and programs to reach more women and members of 

 
4 Let’s Build a More Inclusive World, SALESFORCE, https://sforce.co/44Ic1PE.  
5 Equality, SALESFORCE, https://sforce.co/47ZeOWS. 
6 Lori Castillo Martinez, Our 2023 Annual Equality Update: Where We Are and Where We’re Going, 
SALESFORCE, (Feb. 28, 2023), https://sforce.co/3Xc6Ep7.  
7 Lori Castillo Martinez, Our 2022 Annual Equality Update: Accelerating Representation and Racial 
Equality, SALESFORCE, (Feb. 10, 2022), https://sforce.co/3OxIm6q.    
8 Equality Groups, SALESFORCE, https://sforce.co/3Esrbxi. 
9 Id. 
10 Id. 
11 Brown v. Board of Education of Topeka, Shawnee Cnty., Kan., 347 U.S. 483, 495 (1954). 
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the non-binary community.”12 Salesforce is intentionally providing work benefits to 
only certain employees based on their sex. 
 
There can be no doubt that Salesforce is violating Title VII. It has created hiring 
quotas and then tied executive compensation to meeting those quotas. Using financial 
compensation to encourage executives to meet racial and sex-based hiring quotas is 
a violation of Title VII. Providing employee benefits to only certain employees based 
on their sex is discrimination in violation of Title VII. Because Salesforce’s discrimi-
natory hiring and recruitment practices are longstanding, and because the success of 
these programs is now tied to executive compensation, there is strong reason to be-
lieve they will continue. 
 
II. The Commission Should Investigate Salesforce 
 
Salesforce’s own public-facing statements demonstrate that its hiring and retention 
practices violate Title VII. Discrimination based on immutable characteristics such 
as race, color, national origin, or sex “generates a feeling of inferiority” in its victims 
“that may affect their hearts and minds in a way unlikely to ever be done.”13 More 
broadly, the discrimination here necessarily foments contention and resentment, it is 
“odious and destructive.”14 It truly “is a sordid business, this divvying us up” by race, 
national origin, or sex.”15 Always has been, and always will be. Accordingly, there is 
a compelling reason for the Commission to open a comprehensive investigation of 
Salesforce’s discriminatory recruitment and hiring practices. 
 
 

Sincerely,  
 
/s/ Nicholas R. Barry 
Nicholas R. Barry 
Senior Litigation Counsel 
America First Legal Foundation 
 

 
Cc: The Honorable Charlotte A. Burrows, Commission Chair 
 The Honorable Jocelyn Samuels, Commission Vice Chair 

The Honorable Keith E. Sonderling, Commissioner 
The Honorable Andrea R. Lucas, Commissioner 
The Honorable Kalpana Kotagal, Commissioner 

 
12 Lori Castillo Martinez, Salesforce Commits to a Workforce with at Least 40% Women, Non-Binary 
Employees in Four Years, Salesforce, (Aug. 11, 2022), https://sforce.co/3pgxvDN.   
13 Brown v. Bd. of Education, 347 U.S. 483, 494 (1954). 
14 Texas v. Johnson, 491 U.S. 397, 418 (1989). 
15 League of United Latin Am. Citizens v. Perry, 548 U.S. 399, 511 (2006) (Roberts, C.J., concurring in 
part). 
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